
AMENDED 4-15-2013 
REGULAR PIQUA CITY COMMISSION MEETING 

  TUESDAY, APRIL 16, 2013 
7:30 P.M. – COMMISSION CHAMBER – 2nd FLOOR 

201 WEST WATER STREET 
PIQUA, OHIO   45356 

 
 
 

 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 ROLL CALL  
 
 PRESENTATION: 
           Ms. Cindy Bach, Solid Waste Coordinator for Miami County 
           Topic- Miami County Solid Waste District Update 
  
  

              REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
   

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

1. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
Approval of the minutes from the April 2, 2013 Regular City Commission Meeting  

 
2. RES. NO. R-50-13  

A Resolution terminating the appointment of David Zimmerman to the Community  
Diversity Committee 

 
3. RES. NO. R-51-13 

A Resolution terminating the appointment of David Zimmerman to the Energy Board 
 

4. RES. NO. R-52-13 
A Resolution terminating the appointment of David Zimmerman to the Stormwater Utility Board 

 
5. RES. NO. R-53-13 

A Resolution appointing a member to the Tree Committee 
 

6. RES. NO. R-54-13 
A Resolution appointing a member to the Community Diversity Committee 
 

 NEW BUSINESS 
 

7. RES. NO. R-55-13 
A Resolution retaining the service of Horan to provide Health Insurance Consulting Services  
for the City of Piqua 

 
8. RES. NO. R-56-13 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Fanning Howey 
Engineering Group for the engineering design services for the North Main Street 
Streetscape project 
 
 
 



 2

 
 
 

9. RES. NO. R-57-13 
A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with EMH&T for the 
Engineering Design Services for the Safe Routes to School Improvements 

 
10. RES. NO. R-58-13 

A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to file an application to the Local Government  
Innovation Fund for the funding of a Feasibility Study for a Shared Service Facility 

 
11. RES. NO. R-59-13 

A Resolution objecting to the renewal of Liquor Permit #5520104 held by Maradi Petroleum, LLC, 
DBA Piqua Marathon LLC, 1130 Park Avenue, Piqua, Ohio 
 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENT 
(This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide  
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions  
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office.) 
 
OTHER:  Monthly Reports for February 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 COMMISSIONERS COMMENT 
 
            ADJOURNMENT TO EXECUTIVE SESSION  
  
 To consider the compensation or discipline of a City employee.             
 

ADJOURNMENT 



 1

 
MINUTES 

PIQUA CITY COMMISSION 
Tuesday April 2, 2013 

7:30 P.M. 
 
Piqua City Commission met at 7:30 P.M. in the Municipal Government Complex Commission 
Chambers located at 201 W. Water Street. Mayor Fess called the meeting to order.  Also present 
were Commissioners Martin, Vogt, Terry, and Wilson.  Absent: None 
 

REGULAR CITY COMMISSION MEETING 
 

Mayor Fess asked that Resolution No. R-48-13 be moved forward at this time. 
 

Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to Resolution No. R-48-13 
forward at this time. Roll call, Aye: Vogt, Martin, Terry, Fess, and Wilson.   Nay: None. Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 

      RES. NO. R-48-13 
 

 A Resolution of Appreciation for the Public Service of Joe Cline as a City Employee 
 
 City Manager Huff stated Resolution R-48-13 is a Resolution of Appreciation for Joe Cline for his    
30 years of service as an Electrician in the Power Distribution Department. 
 
Mayor Fess asked Joe Cline and Power System Director Ed Krieger to come forward.  Mayor 
Fess read the Resolution of Appreciation.  Mr. Krieger gave a brief outline of the various positions 
Mr. Cline held in the Power System over his 30 years of employment with the City of Piqua. 
 
Mr. Cline thanked his family and the City of Piqua for their support over the last 30 years of his 
employment. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-48-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, that Resolution No. R-48-13 
be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Vogt.   Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-48-13 adopted. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
Approval of the minutes from the March 14, 2013 Piqua City Commission Work Session and the 
March 19, 2013 Regular Piqua City Commission Meeting 
 

      Moved by Commissioner Martin, seconded by Commissioner Vogt, to approve the Consent  
      Agenda.  Voice vote, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Vogt, Terry, and Martin.  Nay: None.  Motion carried 
      unanimously.   
 
      OLD BUSINESS 

 
      ORD. NO. 3-13 (3rd Reading) 
 

An Ordinance amending Section 77.01-Traffice Schedules adopted, Schedule IV and Schedule         
VII, of the Piqua Code, relating to four-way stop intersections and traffic control devices pertaining    
to the South Street/Sunset Drive intersection 

 



 2

City Engineer Amy Havenar stated this is the third reading of Ordinance No. 3-13 the modification 
of Code Section 77.01 Traffic Schedule.  Ms. Havenar stated a request was brought to the 
Transportation Committee to review the intersections surrounding Pitsenbarger Park for 
improving/enhancing the safety with regards to pedestrians, bicyclists, and the traffic coming out of 
the park complex.  After review the Transportation Committee voted unanimously to recommend to 
the City Commission the intersection be changed from a signalized intersection to a multi-way stop 
intersection. 
  
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 3-13. 
 
After a brief discussion it was moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Terry, to 
adopted Ordinance No. 3-13. Roll call, Aye: Fess, Wilson, Terry, Martin, and Vogt. Nay: None. 
Motion carried unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 3-13 adopted. 

 
     ORD. NO. 4-13 (3rd Reading) 
       
     An Ordinance amending Chapter 90 of the Piqua Municipal Code to repeal Section 90.28 vicious      
     dogs 

 
Police Chief Bruce Jamison stated this is the third reading of Ordinance No. 4-13.  As previously 
stated the Commissioners asked that the code section be reviewed at a City Commission Work 
Session to look into the vicious dog legislation. Coincidentally, there was also a statewide debate 
on a new law which was eventually passed by the Ohio General Assembly.  The new state law 
includes elements of the ordinance which the City originally enacted in 1994.  Chief Jamison stated 
he checked into the Statewide Data Base, and it is still not available and it will be some time before 
it is ready. 
 
There was discussion on the how vicious dogs are identified, and if neighbors are notified of vicious 
or dangerous dogs in their neighborhoods.  Chief Jamison stated citizens should still call 911 for 
help with a vicious dog. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 4-13. 

 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adopt Ordinance No. 4-13. 
Roll call,  Aye: Wilson, Terry, Martin, Vogt, and Fess. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 
Mayor Fess then declared Ordinance No. 4-13 adopted. 

  
    ORD. NO. 5-13 (3rd Reading) 
 
    An Ordinance amending Chapter 111 of the Piqua Municipal Code (Peddlers and Solicitors) 
 

Police Chief Bruce Jamison stated this Ordinance was also in response to concerns raised at a City 
Commission Work Session regarding panhandling restrictions. Panhandling has died down recently 
or at least over the last several weeks they have not been in the mall area. 
 
There was discussion over the need for registering if they were going to panhandle in the City of 
Piqua, and having their registration visible when they are panhandling.   
 
Public Comment 
 
 No one came forward to speak for or against Ordinance No. 5-13. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Terry, seconded by Commissioner Wilson, to adopt Ordinance No. 5-13. 
Roll call, Aye: Terry, Martin, Vogt, Fess, and Wilson. Nay: None. Motion carried unanimously. 



 3

  Mayor Fess declared Ordinance No. 5-13 adopted. 
 

   New Business 
 

RES. NO. R-49-13 
 
A Resolution authorizing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Burgess and Niple, Inc. 
for the completion of the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry Grant received by 
the City of Piqua at a cost not to exceed $115,000 
 
Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Director Bill Murphy stated late last year the City 
of Piqua received a $148,000 grant from the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry 
to further study the health related and development issues dealing with brownfields.  It was noted 
that the City of Piqua is the first and only municipal government in the entire United States to 
receive this funding from the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry. Proposals were 
sent out and after reviewing the three proposals two firms were chosen to be most qualified, 
Burgess and Niple, Inc. and National Brownfield Association. National Brownfield Association 
decided to withdraw their statement, and will act as subcontractor to Burgess and Niple, Inc. on 
this project.   
 
The work will be completed later this summer and will include bringing in a team of national 
experts to review the physical environment and provide guidance and metrics to improve the 
public health in the areas impacted by brownfields, stated Mr. Murphy. 
 
Mayor Fess asked Mr. Murphy what the study entailed.  Mr. Murphy gave a brief overview of the 
study providing information regarding the notification of the information to the public.  This could 
possibly lead to additional funds in the future, stated City Manager Huff. 
 
The entire cost of this project is covered by the ATSDR Grant which was for $148,000 and the 
cost of the contract work is only $115,000, the remaining $33,000 will be retained for 
administrative costs by the City of Piqua, stated Mr. Murphy. 
 
There was a brief discussion of the location of some of the brownfield areas in Piqua, how the 
assessments are completed, and the benefits to the community. 
 
Public Comment 
 
No one came forward to speak for or against Resolution No. R-49-13 
 
Moved by Commissioner Wilson, seconded by Commissioner Terry, that Resolution No. R-49-13 
be adopted. Roll call, Aye: Martin, Vogt, Fess, Wilson, and Terry.   Nay: None. Motion carried 
unanimously. Mayor Fess then declared Resolution No. R-49-13 adopted. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This is an opportunity for citizens to address the City Commission regarding issues or to provide 
information.  Comments are requested to be limited to five (5) minutes and specific questions 
should be addressed to the City Manager’s office. 

 
John Monroe, Leonard Street came forward stating he is a member of the Southview 
Neighborhood Association, and they would like to propose moving the Senior Center from the 
current location at the YMCA to Mote Park.  Mr. Monroe provided information on the reasons for 
moving the senior center. 
 
City Manager Huff stated the next step if the Commission has no objection to this is for Mr. 
Monroe to take his proposal to the Park Board and present the request to them for consideration. 
 



 4

Tom Strohmenger, Spotted Doe came forward and expressed his interest in moving the Senior 
Center from the YMCA to Mote Park, further stating it would be a more convenient location for 
seniors with the larger parking area, and would also provide someone on site each day. 
 
All Commissioners were in agreement with Mr. Monroe going to the Park Board with his proposal. 
 
City Manager’s Report 
 
City Manager Huff announced the City of Piqua Power System was a Diamond Award Winner as 
part of the American Public Power Association Reliable Public Power Provider Program.  Piqua 
was one of only six Diamond Award recipients out of over 2000 Public Power Systems nationwide 
and explained the criteria.  This is a huge accomplishment for the City of Piqua, especially with all 
of the other larger municipal power systems in the nation that Piqua was chosen as one of six, 
stated City Manager Huff.   Power System Director Ed Krieger gave a brief overview of the areas 
in which the City excelled in and announced several employees had also won top honors in their 
fields of competition.  We may not be the largest Power System in the nation, but we can be the 
best, stated Mr. Krieger.  Mayor Fess stated she can attest to the knowledge the power system 
employees have by how fast the Power System is able to get the city back on line whenever there 
is an outage.   
 
City Manager Huff congratulated the Police Officer Matt Cook and Fire Officer Don Larger for 
being named Officers of the Year, and Joe Cline for his 30 years of service to the City of Piqua. 
 
City Manager Huff stated Buffalo Wing’s and Rings restaurant will have their official Ribbon 
Cutting on April 13th at 10:45 A.M. ,further stating the restaurant was recently named #1 in sales in 
all the franchises in all of the states. 
 
City Manager Huff announced the State of Economic Development Report will be held on 
Thursday, April 18th at 4:00 at Ft. Piqua Plaza. 
 
City Manager Huff announced the Monthly Work Session for April has been cancelled due to lack 
of business. 
 
Commissioners Comment 
 
Commissioner Vogt congratulated Joe Cline on his 30 years of service to the City of Piqua.   
Commissioner Vogt announced the Echo Hills Golf Course is open and they are selling 
memberships, stating it is the best golf course in the area.  Commissioner Vogt encouraged 
citizens to patronize all of the City of Piqua facilities this summer. 
 
Commissioner Martin congratulated the Ed Krieger, the Piqua Municipal Power Plant and the 
employees on their recognition, further stating we do things well in the City of Piqua and it shows. 
 
Commissioner Terry congratulated Power Systems director Ed Krieger, and the Power Plant 
employees on their achievements, and to former Power Plant employee Joe Cline on his 30 years 
of service to the City of Piqua.  It was nice to see Mr. Cline’s family in attendance for his 
recognition. 
 
Commissioner Wilson congratulated Power Systems Director Ed Krieger, the Power Plant 
employees, and the Joe Cline. Recently the Police & Fire Appreciation Dinner was held at the 
YWCA, and Matt Cook was named Police Officer of the Year, and Don Larger was named Fire 
Fighter of the Year, stated Commissioner Wilson offering his congratulations to both of them. 
 
Commissioner Wilson announced on April 13, 10:30 A.M. residents will meet and leave from Lock 
9 Park on the First Community Bicycle Ride along the Bike Path, stopping at a local restaurant for 
lunch.  This will be a monthly event that will take place on the second Saturday of each month with 
the ride being about an hour long. This is a great way to get people out on the bike path either 
riding or walking, and will be a fun event, said Commissioner Wilson.     



 5

 
Mayor Fess congratulated Ed Krieger and the Power Plant employees, Joe Cline, Matt Cook, and 
Don Larger. 
 
Mayor Fess announced Dancing with the Piqua Stars is scheduled for Saturday April 7th at the 
Learning Center with two performances.  There are still tickets available for the afternoon matinee 
with the evening dinner session sold out.  Vote for your favorite dancer and help support the Piqua 
Arts Council. 
 
Moved by Commissioner Vogt, seconded by Commissioner Martin, to adjourn from the Regular 
Piqua City Commission Meeting at 8:20 P.M.  Voice vote, Aye: Martin, Terry, Wilson, and Vogt. 
Nay: None.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
                  
       ______________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR   
PASSED: ______________________   
 
ATTEST: _______________________ 
         REBECCA J. COOL 
        CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-50-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE APPOINTMENT OF 
 DAVID ZIMMERMAN TO THE COMMUNITY DIVERSITY 
                              COMMITTEE 
 

WHEREAS, David Zimmerman was appointed to the Community Diversity 
Committee on March 6, 2012 by Resolution No. R-67-12 for a term to expire on 
March 1, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is required that citizens serving on the City of Piqua Boards 

and Committees be residents of the City of Piqua, residing within City limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been advised that David Zimmerman no 

longer resides in the City of Piqua. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby terminates the appointment of David 
Zimmerman as a member of the Community Diversity Committee and therefore 
creates a vacancy on said Committee to fill the unexpired term of David Zimmerman. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-51-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE APPOINTMENT OF 
       DAVID ZIMMERMAN TO THE ENERGY BOARD                 
 

WHEREAS, David Zimmerman was appointed to the Energy Board on March 
6, 2012 by Resolution No. R-38-12 for a term to expire on March 1, 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is required that citizens serving on the City of Piqua Boards 

and Committees be residents of the City of Piqua, residing within City limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been advised that David Zimmerman no 

longer resides in the City of Piqua. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby terminates the appointment of David 
Zimmerman as a member of the Energy Board and therefore creates a vacancy on 
said Committee to fill the unexpired term of David Zimmerman. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                         RESOLUTION NO. R-52-13 
 
 

A RESOLUTION TERMINATING THE APPOINTMENT OF 
                  DAVID ZIMMERMAN TO THE STORMWATER UTILITY BOARD                 

 
WHEREAS, David Zimmerman was appointed to the Stormwater Utility Board 

on March 6, 2012 by Resolution No. R-45-12 for a term to expire on August 1, 2013; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, it is required that citizens serving on the City of Piqua Boards 

and Committees be residents of the City of Piqua, residing within City limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Piqua has been advised that David Zimmerman no 

longer resides in the City of Piqua. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 

SEC. 1: This Commission hereby terminates the appointment of David 
Zimmerman as a member of the Stormwater Utility Board and therefore creates a 
vacancy on said Committee to fill the unexpired term of David Zimmerman. 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-53-13 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                             TO THE TREE COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Jesse Dotson is hereby appointed as a member of the Tree 
Committee for a term to expire on March 1, 2017 or until his successor is confirmed 
and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



                                    RESOLUTION NO. R-54-13 
 

   A RESOLUTION APPOINTING A MEMBER 
                       TO THE COMMUNITY DIVERSITY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of Piqua, Miami County, 
Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 

SEC. 1: Helen Cuff is hereby appointed as a member of the 
Community Diversity Committee for a term to expire on March 1, 2015 or until her 
successor is confirmed and qualified; 
 
 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
 
      ____________________________ 
      LUCINDA L. FESS MAYOR 
 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 



RESOLUTION NO.  R-55-13 
 

A RESOLUTION RETAINING THE SERVICE OF HORAN TO PROVIDE 
HEALTH INSURANCE CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE 

CITY OF PIQUA 
 
 

WHEREAS, HORAN has been providing the City of Piqua with health insurance 
consultation services since June of 2010 as approved by the City Commission by the 
passage of  Resolutions R-52-10 and R-79-12; and 

 
WHEREAS, HORAN quoted an additional three years (June 2013 – May 2016) in 

the consulting agreement dated June 1, 2012 with no increase in fees; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Administration to exercise this three year 

option of HORAN’s quote  
 
NOW,  THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 

Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, that: 
 
SEC 1:  HORAN is hereby retained by the City of Piqua for health insurance 

consulting services for the period of June 1, 2013 through May 31, 2016. 
 
SEC 2:  For such services, HORAN’S consulting fees are $2,666.66 per month 
 
SEC 3:  The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is authorized 

to draw her warrant on the appropriate account of the city treasury from time to time in 
payment for said services rendered. 

 
SEC 4:  This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after the 

earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
            
     LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 

 
 
PASSED:        
 
 
ATTEST:        
       REBECCA J. COOL 
       CLERK OF COMMISSION 



 

Item # 7
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 

April 16, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A RESOLUTION RETAINING THE SERVICE OF HORAN TO PROVIDE 
HEALTH INSURANCE CONSULTING SERVICES FOR THE 
CITY OF PIQUA 
 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title:  Elaine G. Barton, Human Resources Director 
Department:  Human Resources 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
X Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 

X Department Director;  Other:  
 

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

 
HORAN has worked with the City of Piqua for the past three years as the health 
insurance consultant.   Resolution No. R-79-12 extended HORAN’s contract for 
the third year.  The consulting agreement executed on June 1, 2012 included an 
option for an additional three year period.   The City would like to exercise this 
option.   HORAN’s proposal would maintain the rate ($2,666.66 per month) for 
the next three year period.     HORAN has negotiated lower health insurance 
premiums for the City for the past two years.  HORAN was successful in 
negotiating a single digit (6.5%) increase for the 2013 plan year.   In the three 
years that the City has worked with HORAN we have averaged a 5 % increase.  
Each of these years a higher rate was initially released but through negotiations 
HORAN was able to save the City hundreds of thousands of dollars.  In 
addition, HORAN has kept us informed with regard to changes in the health 
care law which will include additional mandates beginning in 2014.  HORAN 
continues to work with the City on setting up an on-site clinic.   Their 
participation in this project has been invaluable and their expertise will be 
necessary moving forward.        The City does not incur broker fees with 
HORAN, that is, they are paid a flat fee rather than a percentage of whichever 
health insurance coverage that we choose.  

 
BUDGETING AND 

FINANCIAL IMPACT 
(Includes project costs and funding 

sources) 

Budgeted $:  $2,666.66 per month 
Expenditure $:  $2,666.66 per month 
Source of Funds: All Funds with employees with health insurance coverage 
Narrative:   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 
 

1. Adopt Resolution No. R-55-13 retaining HORAN as the City’s health 
insurance consultant 

2. Reject Resolution No. R-55-13 and provide staff with further direction 
3.  
4.  



 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 

 
June 1, 2013 through May 31, 2016 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
 

It is recommended that Resolution No. R-55-13 be approved and HORAN be 
retained as the City’s health insurance consultant.   As stated above, HORAN is 
currently working with City staff to examine the feasibility of an on-site clinic.   
In addition, HORAN has been instrumental in securing lower rates for 
employee health insurance saving the City hundreds of thousands of dollars.   

ATTACHMENTS  HORAN Stewardship Report  
Consulting Agreement dated June 1, 2013 
 

 

























H
 I 

S 
T 

O
 R

 Y
  

HO
RA

N
 h

as
  e

nj
oy

ed
 o

ur
 re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f P
iq

ua
  w

hi
ch

 b
eg

an
 in

 2
01

0.
 W

e 
cr

ea
te

d 
a 

pr
of

es
sio

na
l p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 se
rv

e 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
s’ 

ne
ed

s w
ith

 q
ua

lit
y 

pr
od

uc
ts

 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 th

ro
ug

h 
ou

r c
on

su
lti

ng
 se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r t
he

 G
ro

up
 H

ea
lth

 B
en

ef
it 

pl
an

 a
nd

 
re

la
te

d 
pr

od
uc

ts
.  

 To
da

y 
HO

RA
N

 p
ro

vi
de

s e
xc

ep
tio

na
l s

er
vi

ce
, s

ki
lle

d 
be

ne
fit

 a
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
an

d 
co

st
 

co
nt

ai
nm

en
t f

or
 th

e 
Ci

ty
 o

f P
iq

ua
.  

O
ur

 fo
cu

s i
s o

n 
pl

an
 d

es
ig

n 
co

ns
ul

tin
g,

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

ex
ce

lle
nc

e,
 h

ea
lth

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 e

xe
m

pl
ar

y 
cu

st
om

er
 ca

re
.  

W
e 

pr
ov

id
e 

st
re

am
lin

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 cu
rr

en
t r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 a

s 
th

ey
 re

la
te

 to
 b

en
ef

it 
of

fe
rin

gs
 a

nd
 k

ee
p 

 th
e 

Ci
ty

  i
nf

or
m

ed
 o

n 
he

al
th

ca
re

 tr
en

ds
. 

 C 
O

 R
 E

   
S 

E 
R 

V 
I C

 E
 S

 
BE

N
EF

IT
 P

LA
N

 S
TR

AT
EG

Y 
AN

D
 D

ES
IG

N
 

HO
RA

N
 st

riv
es

 to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

re
le

va
nc

y 
in

 a
 w

or
ld

 o
f s

hi
fti

ng
 b

en
ef

it 
ch

al
le

ng
es

 fo
r t

he
 

Ci
ty

. W
e 

of
fe

r a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e 

be
ne

fit
s p

la
n 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s p
ro

du
ct

 c
ho

ic
es

 fo
r b

ot
h 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

of
fe

rin
gs

.  
Th

is 
en

ab
le

s  
th

e 
Ci

ty
 to

 m
ee

t t
he

 n
ee

ds
 o

f t
he

 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

n 
w

ith
 si

m
pl

ifi
ed

 b
en

ef
its

 a
dm

in
ist

ra
tio

n 
su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
 H

O
RA

N
. 

 FI
N

AN
CI

AL
 &

 D
AT

A 
AN

AL
YS

IS
 

HO
RA

N
 d

el
iv

er
s e

xt
en

siv
e 

da
ta

 a
nd

 fi
na

nc
ia

l a
na

ly
sis

 to
 a

ss
es

s e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s o
f 

cu
rr

en
t p

la
ns

, p
re

di
ct

 re
ne

w
al

 co
st

s a
nd

 a
sc

er
ta

in
 co

st
 im

pa
ct

 o
f o

pt
io

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

in
 

th
e 

m
ar

ke
tp

la
ce

.  
 

 HE
AL

TH
 M

AN
AG

EM
EN

T/
W

EL
LN

ES
S 

HO
RA

N
 e

nh
an

ce
s t

he
 w

el
l-b

ei
ng

 o
f  

th
e 

Ci
ty

’s 
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s a
nd

 th
ei

r f
am

ili
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

as
sis

ta
nc

e 
in

 th
e 

w
el

ln
es

s p
la

ns
.  

Th
is 

in
cl

ud
es

 w
el

ln
es

s  
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

as
sis

ta
nc

e 
an

d 
ex

ec
ut

io
n 

of
  L

un
ch

 a
nd

 Le
ar

ns
, b

io
m

et
ric

 sc
re

en
in

g 
ev

en
ts

, a
nd

 th
e 

U
HC

 B
en

d 
th

e 
Tr

en
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
re

su
lti

ng
 in

 re
ne

w
al

 sa
vi

ng
s w

ith
 U

HC
. H

O
RA

N
  h

as
 w

or
ke

d 
cl

os
el

y 
w

ith
 G

ar
y 

Hu
ff 

 in
 th

e 
on

go
in

g 
 m

ar
ke

t r
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f  
th

e 
on

-s
ite

 
cl

in
ic

. H
O

RA
N

 a
s p

er
fo

rm
ed

 a
 m

ar
ke

t r
ev

ie
w

 , 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

N
ov

ia
ca

re
 w

hi
ch

 p
er

fo
rm

ed
 

an
 R

O
I f

or
 th

is 
pr

op
os

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
. H

O
RA

N
 in

vi
te

d 
ot

he
r l

oc
al

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s, 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
 

In
du

st
ry

 P
ro

du
ct

s, 
Ha

rt
ze

ll 
 In

du
st

rie
s a

nd
  P

iq
ua

 C
ity

 S
ch

oo
ls 

to
  e

xp
lo

re
 th

e 
m

ul
ti-

em
pl

oy
er

 cl
in

ic
 m

od
el

. I
n 

20
13

 H
O

RA
N

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

a 
$1

0,
00

0 
w

el
ln

es
s b

ud
ge

t w
ith

 
An

th
em

, w
hi

ch
 ca

n 
be

 u
se

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
cl

in
ic

 st
ar

tu
p 

. H
O

RA
N

 h
as

 sc
he

du
le

d 
a 

m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

 A
nt

he
m

 e
xe

cu
tiv

es
 in

 A
pr

il,
 2

01
3 

to
 e

xp
lo

re
 ca

rr
ie

r c
lin

ic
 m

od
el

 
op

tio
ns

. 
 ST

RA
TE

GI
C 

RE
LA

TI
O

N
SH

IP
S 

&
 P

RO
PR

IE
TA

RY
 P

RO
DU

CT
S 

HO
RA

N
’s 

vo
lu

m
e 

of
 b

us
in

es
s w

ith
 th

e 
m

ai
n 

m
ed

ic
al

 ca
rr

ie
rs

 in
 th

e 
SW

 O
hi

o 
 m

ar
ke

t 
al

lo
w

s f
or

 d
ire

ct
 a

cc
es

s t
o 

th
ei

r e
xe

cu
tiv

e 
an

d 
un

de
rw

rit
in

g 
te

am
s e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 
ha

s t
he

 m
os

t e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
re

ne
w

al
 n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 a

nd
 se

rv
ic

e 
re

so
lu

tio
n.

 
 HO

RA
N

 h
as

 st
ra

te
gi

c p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l o
rg

an
iz

at
io

ns
, U

ni
te

d 
Be

ne
fit

s 
Ad

vi
so

rs
 a

nd
 M

 F
in

an
ci

al
, e

na
bl

in
g 

HO
RA

N
 to

 o
ffe

r p
ro

pr
ie

ta
ry

 p
ro

du
ct

s a
nd

 se
rv

ic
es

 
ot

he
r b

ro
ke

rs
 ca

nn
ot

.  
Th

is 
in

cl
ud

es
 : 

• 
 E

xt
en

siv
e 

na
tio

na
l, 

re
gi

on
al

, l
oc

al
, i

nd
us

tr
y 

an
d 

siz
e 

be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

 
• 

 B
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

es
 n

at
io

nw
id

e 
 

 C 
O

 M
 P

 E
 N

 S
 A

 T
 I 

O
 N

  
HO

RA
N

 is
 co

m
m

itt
ed

 to
 o

pe
nn

es
s a

nd
 tr

an
sp

ar
en

cy
. C

ur
re

nt
ly

 H
O

RA
N

 re
ce

iv
es

  
$3

2,
00

0 
fo

r m
ed

ic
al

 co
ns

ul
tin

g 
fe

es
 ; 

st
an

da
rd

 c
om

m
iss

io
ns

 fo
r l

ife
 a

nd
 d

en
ta

l. 
 

HE
AL

TH
  

BE
N

EF
IT

S 
CO

N
SU

LT
IN

G 

FI
N

AN
CI

AL
 

AN
AL

YS
IS

 

IN
DI

VI
DU

AL
 

HE
AL

TH
 A

N
D 

M
ED

IC
AR

E 

CO
RE

 S
ER

VI
CE

S 

Ju
lie

 T
op

le
 

Ac
co

un
t M

an
ag

er
 

 •  
He

al
th

 B
en

ef
its

 C
on

su
lti

ng
  

•  
Be

ne
fit

s S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
De

sig
n 

•  
Re

ne
w

al
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

•  
Ac

co
un

t S
er

vi
ce

 

Sh
el

ly
 H

od
ge

s-
Ko

ny
s 

Be
ne

fit
s C

on
su

lta
nt

 
 •  

 O
nl

in
e 

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

•  
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
U

pd
at

es
 

•  
 E

m
pl

oy
er

/E
m

pl
oy

ee
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
 

  a
nd

 E
du

ca
tio

n 

In
di

vi
du

al
 H

ea
lth

 P
la

ns
/M

ed
ic

ar
e 

  
•  

De
pe

nd
en

t a
nd

 M
ed

ic
ar

e 
Au

di
t 

 Ac
tu

ar
ia

l R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 F
un

di
ng

 
An

al
ys

is
 

•  
Re

vi
ew

 o
f p

os
sib

le
 se

lf 
fu

nd
in

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 

  

W
el

ln
es

s P
ro

gr
am

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

•  
 H

ea
lth

 S
cr

ee
ni

ng
s 

•  
 In

ce
nt

iv
es

 
•  

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

•  
 A

cc
es

s t
o 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

– 
qu

al
ity

, 
pr

ic
e,

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

, e
tc

. 

S 
E 

R 
V 

I C
 E

   
O

 P
 T

 I 
O

 N
 S

 
C 

U
 R

 R
 E

 N
 T

  S
 E

 R
 V

 I 
C 

E 
S 

P 
R 

A 
C 

T 
I C

 E
  

L 
E 

A 
D

 E
 R

 S
  

N
ew

 H
ire

 P
ac

ke
ts

 / 
Ex

it 
Pa

ck
et

s f
or

 
Em

pl
oy

ee
s 

•  
 N

ot
ify

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s o

f t
he

ir 
rig

ht
s  

•  
 P

ro
vi

de
 a

pp
lic

ab
le

 co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
no

tif
ic

at
io

ns
 

•  
 In

fo
rm

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s a

bo
ut

 b
en

ef
its

   
   

up
on

 e
nr

ol
lm

en
t a

nd
 te

rm
in

at
io

n 
  

Em
pl

oy
ee

 T
ot

al
 C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

St
at

em
en

ts
 

 O
nl

in
e 

Su
rv

ey
s 

•  
 G

au
ge

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’ 

pe
rc

ep
tio

n 
of

 
be

ne
fit

 p
ac

ka
ge

 
•  

 G
at

he
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

 d
at

a 
 

Ty
le

r D
ie

rk
er

s 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l A

na
ly

st
 

 •  
Be

nc
hm

ar
ki

ng
 A

na
ly

sis
 

•  
Co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
St

ra
te

gi
es

 

•  
Re

ne
w

al
 H

ist
or

y 
an

d 
Tr

en
ds

 

Be
nc

hm
ar

ki
ng

  
•  

 R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

ity
’s 

be
ne

fit
 o

ffe
rin

gs
 an

d 
ho

w
 th

e 
co

m
pa

ny
 co

m
pa

re
s t

o 
sim

ila
r e

m
pl

oy
er

s i
n 

th
e 

ar
ea

 a
nd

 n
at

io
nw

id
e 

 Em
pl

oy
ee

 m
ee

tin
gs

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

op
tio

ns
 

 O
ne

 o
n 

O
ne

 m
ee

tin
gs

 fo
r M

ed
ic

ar
e 

el
ig

ib
le

 in
di

vi
du

al
s 

 
  

Ch
ris

 M
ih

in
 

Ac
co

un
t E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

 •  
In

ve
st

ig
at

es
 o

pt
io

n 
of

 in
di

vi
du

al
 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 M

ed
ic

ar
e 

•  
Ed

uc
at

es
 in

di
vi

du
al

s o
n 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 p

la
ns

 

C 
O

 M
 P

 A
 N

 Y
  H

 I 
S 

T 
O

 R
 Y

 

HO
RA

N
 is

 o
ne

 o
f t

he
 re

gi
on

’s 
la

rg
es

t p
riv

at
el

y 
he

ld
 h

ea
lth

 ca
re

 co
ns

ul
tin

g,
 

fin
an

ci
al

 se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
or

ga
ni

za
tio

ns
.  

HO
RA

N
 h

as
 a

 st
ro

ng
 re

gi
on

al
 

pr
es

en
ce

 w
ith

 a
 n

at
io

na
l f

oo
tp

rin
t. 

W
e 

br
in

g 
th

e 
be

st
 se

rv
ic

es
, r

es
ou

rc
es

   
  

an
d 

va
lu

e 
to

 o
ur

 c
lie

nt
s t

hr
ou

gh
 n

at
io

na
l p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s.

 

 HO
RA

N
 w

or
ks

 w
ith

 o
ve

r 4
50

 c
om

pa
ni

es
.  

O
ur

 c
lie

nt
 re

te
nt

io
n 

ra
te

 is
 

co
ns

ist
en

tly
 a

bo
ve

 9
0%

.  
O

ur
 2

01
2 

ou
r c

lie
nt

 re
te

nt
io

n 
ra

te
 w

as
 9

5%
, 

co
m

pa
re

d 
to

 a
n 

in
du

st
ry

 a
ve

ra
ge

 o
f 9

0%
. 

 M
or

e 
th

an
 si

m
pl

y p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

ro
du

ct
s, 

w
e 

se
rv

e 
as

 a
 p

ar
tn

er
 to

 h
el

p 
de

te
rm

in
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

 so
lu

tio
n 

fo
r y

ou
r n

ee
ds

.  
O

ur
 fo

cu
s i

s d
el

iv
er

in
g 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c b

lu
ep

rin
t c

ou
pl

ed
 w

ith
 v

al
ue

 a
dd

ed
 b

en
ef

its
 to

 m
ak

e 
yo

ur
 li

fe
 a

nd
 

th
e 

liv
es

 o
f y

ou
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s e
as

ie
r. 

 

CL
IE

N
T 

CA
RE

 A
N

D 
ED

U
CA

TI
O

N
 

ST
RA

TE
GI

C 
O

VE
RS

IG
HT

 

Er
ik

 F
re

ud
en

be
rg

 
VP

 
 •  

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

la
nn

in
g 

•  
In

du
st

ry
 tr

en
ds

 a
nd

 im
pa

ct
s 

•  
Is

su
e 

Re
so

lu
tio

n 

An
ne

 P
au

lu
s 

Ac
co

un
t R

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
 •  

Ed
uc

at
io

n 
&

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

•  
Cl

ie
nt

 C
la

im
s  

• A
cc

ou
nt

 S
er

vi
ce

 

To
ta

l C
lie

nt
 C

ar
e 

M
od

el
 

•  
De

liv
er

 w
ea

lth
 a

nd
 li

fe
 se

rv
ic

es
 to

 in
di

vi
du

al
s, 

fa
m

ili
es

 an
d 

em
pl

oy
er

s 
•

He
lp

 a
ch

ie
ve

 fi
na

nc
ia

l g
oa

ls 
•

Pr
ot

ec
t a

ss
et

s o
ve

r l
ife

tim
e 

•
Ab

ili
ty

 to
 b

ui
ld

 lo
ng

-t
er

m
 w

ea
lth

 
•  

 H
O

RA
N

 o
ffe

rs
 re

tir
em

en
t p

la
nn

in
g,

 4
01

(k
) a

nd
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

le
ve

l c
ou

ns
el

 



HO
RA

N
’s

 A
cc

ou
nt

 T
ea

m
 is

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 to

 th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f P

iq
ua

 a
nd

 co
nt

in
ue

s t
o 

be
 a

n 
ad

vo
ca

te
 fo

r 
bo

th
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s a
nd

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

.  
 

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
• 

 S
up

po
rt

 H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 re
sp

on
sib

ili
tie

s i
nc

lu
di

ng
 co

m
pl

ia
nc

e,
 e

nr
ol

lm
en

t, 
cl

ai
m

s a
pp

ea
l 

as
sis

ta
nc

e 
an

d 
ge

ne
ra

l t
ro

ub
le

 sh
oo

tin
g 

• 
 Im

pr
ov

e 
ab

ili
ty

 to
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

• 
 S

tr
ea

m
lin

e 
en

ro
llm

en
t p

ro
ce

ss
 

•Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 F

in
an

ci
al

 A
na

ly
sis

  U
pd

at
es

 
•P

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

s t
o 

ca
rr

ie
r L

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
 Su

cc
es

s 
HO

RA
N

 h
as

 a
ss

ist
ed

   
th

e 
Ci

ty
 w

ith
 w

ith
 k

ey
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 : 

  
 •A

cc
es

s t
o 

U
HC

 Lu
nc

h 
an

d 
Le

ar
ns

;  
He

al
th

 R
isk

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t p

ro
m

ot
io

ns
 

•M
ee

tin
g 

sc
he

du
le

d 
Ap

ril
 2

01
3 

w
ith

 A
nt

he
m

’s 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

 to
 d

isc
us

s c
lin

ic
 m

od
el

s 
Fa

ci
lit

at
in

g “
He

al
th

y 
O

hi
o”

 M
ay

 m
ee

tin
g 

at
 th

e 
ci

ty
 to

 sh
ow

ca
se

 th
e 

cl
in

ic
 a

nd
 w

el
ln

es
s s

pa
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

th
ird

 fl
oo

r 

E 
M

 P
 L

 O
 Y

 E
 E

  A
 N

 D
  H

 U
 M

 A
 N

  R
 E

 S
 O

 U
 R

 C
 E

 S
  S

 U
 P

 P
 O

 R
 T

 

R
 E

 N
 E

 W
 A

 L
 

HO
RA

N
  R

en
ew

al
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 

O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
• 

 D
ev

el
op

 sh
or

t t
er

m
 a

nd
 lo

ng
 te

rm
 st

ra
te

gy
 to

 st
ab

ili
ze

 h
ea

lth
 ca

re
 c

os
ts

 
• 

 M
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

co
ns

ist
en

t a
nd

 fa
vo

ra
bl

e 
be

ne
fit

s p
ro

gr
am

 to
 a

tt
ra

ct
 a

nd
 re

ta
in

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

 Su
cc

es
s 

Th
ro

ug
h 

ca
rr

ie
r n

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
, m

ar
ke

t p
la

ce
 co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
bi

dd
in

g 
 a

nd
  p

la
n 

de
sig

n 
ch

an
ge

s, 
HO

RA
N

 
w

as
 a

bl
e 

to
 n

eg
ot

ia
te

  a
 ra

te
 h

ol
d 

 in
 2

01
1 

fr
om

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 U
HC

 1
2.

9%
 in

cr
ea

se
, (

to
ta

l s
av

in
gs

 fr
om

 
or

ig
in

al
 re

ne
w

al
 to

  t
he

 fi
na

l r
at

e 
ho

ld
, w

as
 $

24
1K

). 
 2

01
2,

 H
O

RA
N

 se
cu

re
d 

a 
sin

gl
e 

di
gi

t i
nc

re
as

e 
(9

%
); 

de
nt

al
 w

as
 m

ov
ed

 to
 U

HC
, f

or
 a

 5
.9

%
 sa

vi
ng

s f
ro

m
 S

up
er

io
r D

en
ta

l C
ar

e.
 

 Fo
r 2

01
3 

M
ed

ic
al

, t
he

 in
iti

al
 U

HC
 re

ne
w

al
 w

as
 2

3.
5%

, r
ed

uc
ed

 to
 1

1%
 w

ith
 co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
qu

ot
es

 fr
om

 
An

th
em

.  
HO

RA
N

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
d 

a 
6.

5%
 fi

na
l r

en
ew

al
 o

ffe
r f

ro
m

 A
nt

he
m

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

ed
 m

ov
in

g 
de

nt
al

 
an

d 
lif

e 
in

su
ra

nc
e 

to
 A

nt
he

m
 a

nd
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l d

isc
ou

nt
 fo

r t
he

 C
ity

 b
el

on
gi

ng
 to

 a
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

in
g 

Ch
am

be
r. 

Th
e 

fin
al

 re
ne

w
al

 d
iff

er
en

ce
 fr

om
 U

HC
’s 

17
.6

%
 in

cr
ea

se
 to

 A
nt

he
m

’s 
fin

al
 ra

te
s, 

w
as

 
$9

0,
00

0.
 

       

C 
O

 M
 P

 L
 I 

A 
N

 C
 E

 

 E 
D

 U
 C

 A
 T

 I 
O

 N
  A

 N
 D

  C
 O

 M
 M

 U
 N

 I 
C 

AT
 I 

O
 N

 

H
O

RA
N

 is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

 to
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
cc

ur
at

e 
an

d 
tim

el
y 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

of
 co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
iss

ue
s 

pe
rt

ai
ni

ng
 to

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 b

en
ef

its
. 

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
•  

Ke
ep

 th
e 

Ci
ty

  a
w

ar
e 

an
d 

in
 co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
as

 it
 re

la
te

s t
o 

be
ne

fit
 o

ffe
rin

gs
 

•  
Si

m
pl

ify
 le

gi
sla

tio
n 

as
 it

 p
er

ta
in

s t
o 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 
 Su

cc
es

s 
 As

 a
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 C
or

e 
Se

rv
ic

es
 H

O
RA

N
 p

ro
vi

de
s t

o 
ou

r c
lie

nt
s, 

HO
RA

N
 se

nt
 o

ve
r 1

2 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
up

da
te

s t
ha

t a
ffe

ct
ed

 th
e 

Ci
ty

  i
n 

20
11

 a
nd

 2
01

2.
 2

01
3 

 H
O

RA
N

 h
as

 6
 se

m
in

ar
s d

ed
ic

at
ed

 to
 P

PA
CA

. 
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

, H
O

RA
N

 h
as

 co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 a
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
a 

de
di

ca
te

d 
te

am
 o

f e
xp

er
ts

 w
ho

 a
re

 
di

lig
en

tly
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f H
ea

lth
 C

ar
e 

Re
fo

rm
 a

nd
 w

e 
w

ill
 co

nt
in

ue
 to

 k
ee

p 
th

e 
Ci

ty
 

in
fo

rm
ed

 a
s t

he
 p

ro
ce

ss
 to

 fi
na

liz
e 

th
e 

bi
ll 

co
nt

in
ue

s.
   

H
O

RA
N

  i
n 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

  t
he

 ca
rr

ie
rs

 p
ro

vi
de

s o
pe

n 
en

ro
llm

en
t b

en
ef

it 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
as

sis
ta

nc
e 

fo
r t

he
  a

nn
ua

l o
pe

n 
en

ro
llm

en
t .

  
 H

O
RA

N
 a

ss
ist

ed
 th

e 
Ci

ty
  i

n 
en

ha
nc

in
g 

th
e 

 W
el

ln
es

s p
ro

gr
am

s w
ith

 U
H

C 
in

 2
01

1 
an

d 
20

12
, 

H
O

RA
N

 h
el

pe
d 

co
or

di
na

te
  B

io
m

et
ric

 sc
re

en
in

gs
 a

nd
 Lu

nc
h 

an
d 

Le
ar

ns
 w

ith
 U

H
C;

 in
 2

01
3 

H
O

RA
N

 is
 a

ss
ist

in
g 

th
e 

Ci
ty

 w
ith

  a
rr

an
gi

ng
 o

ng
oi

ng
 w

el
ln

es
s p

ro
gr

am
s t

hr
ou

gh
 A

nt
he

m
. 

 O
bj

ec
tiv

e 
•  

En
ha

nc
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

ir 
be

ne
fit

s t
hr

ou
gh

 Lu
nc

h 
an

d 
Le

ar
ns

  a
nd

  I
de

nt
ify

 
w

ay
s f

or
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s t
o 

re
du

ce
 c

os
ts

 re
la

tin
g 

to
 b

en
ef

it 
of

fe
rin

gs
 

•  
Im

pr
ov

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 e

ng
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 a
w

ar
en

es
s a

s i
t r

el
at

es
 to

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
 a

nd
 w

el
ln

es
s 

•  
Re

du
ce

 ti
m

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
HR

 o
n 

ad
dr

es
sin

g 
em

pl
oy

ee
 q

ue
st

io
ns

 p
er

ta
in

in
g 

to
 b

en
ef

its
 

• I
nc

re
as

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 w

el
ln

es
s e

ng
ag

em
en

t w
ith

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 su

pp
or

t f
ro

m
  A

nt
he

m
’s 

w
el

ln
es

s  
co

or
di

na
to

r. 
Su

cc
es

s 
20

12
 th

e 
bi

om
et

ric
 sc

re
en

in
g 

ev
en

t p
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
do

ub
le

d 
fr

om
 th

ey
 p

rio
r y

ea
r. 

 

HO
RA

N
 

is
 c

om
m

itt
ed

  

to
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
 

su
pe

rio
r 

cu
st

om
er

 se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

 

pr
em

ie
r  

He
al

th
, W

ea
lth

 a
nd

  

Li
fe

 so
lu

tio
ns

 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

  

ou
ts

ta
nd

in
g 

va
lu

e 
an

d 

ou
tc

om
es

 to
   

Th
e 

Ci
ty

 o
f P

iq
ua

 

an
d 

its
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s.
 



RESOLUTION NO. R-56-13 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH 
FANNING HOWEY ENGINEERING GROUP FOR 
THE ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES FOR 
THE N. MAIN STREET STREETSCAPE PROJECT  

 
WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, this Commission passed Resolution No. 

R-6-13 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the engineering design services for the N. Main Street Streetscape 
Project; and  

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, Fanning Howey 
Engineering Group has been determined to be the most qualified provider of 
these services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to Fanning Howey 
Engineering Group for the necessary engineering design services for the N. Main 
Street Streetscape Project; 

 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is 
authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of 
the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$77,000; 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item # 8
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
April 16, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with Fanning 
Howey Engineering Group for the Engineering Design Services for the N. Main 
Street Streetscape Project. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 
Department:  Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

In October of 2010, City Commission approved the submission of the N. Main 
Street Streetscape Project to the Miami Valley Regional Planning Commission 
for funding under the Transportation Enhancement (TE) program.  This project 
was selected for funding and this resolution would allow us to begin the design 
process.  

As with all projects utilizing federal money, the selected consultants must be on 
ODOT’s prequalified consultants list.  After soliciting for Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ’s), Fanning Howey Engineering Group was selected to 
provide a Technical Proposal for the engineering design services. 

The project limits are from Greene Street to the River Bridge on N. Main Street.  
The project will consist of the removal and replacement of sidewalk, curbing, 
street signs, light poles, and the installation of brick pavers, benches, trash 
receptacles and other streetscape amenities where right-of-way permits.     

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $75,000  

Expenditure $:  $77,000 (includes 10% contingency) 

Source of Funds: Fund 103 – Street Income Tax  

Narrative  As with the majority of our federally funded projects, the 
engineering costs are funded with 100% local funds.   

The City has received $300,000 in grant money for the 
construction from the Federal Highway Administration.  
The total project cost is estimated to be approximately 
$1,000,000.  Construction is scheduled for the summer of 
2016.         
 



 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with Fanning Howey 
Engineering Group for the engineering design. 

2. Do not approve the resolution, therefore, do not complete the engineering 
design and return the funding.   

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
The engineering design would begin immediately with project construction 
scheduled for the summer of 2016.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution to allow for engineering design to begin on the N. Main 
Street Streetscape Project.   

ATTACHMENTS  “A” - Scope of Services for the engineering design. 

 
 
 
  







RESOLUTION NO. R-57-13 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING AUTHORIZATION 
TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH EMH&T 
FOR THE ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES 
FOR THE SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL 
IMPROVEMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, on January 15, 2013, this Commission passed Resolution No. 

R-6-13 authorizing the City Purchasing Analyst to advertise for bids, according to 
law, for the engineering design services for the Safe Routes to School 
Improvements; and  

WHEREAS, after solicitation of Request for Qualifications, EMH&T has 
been determined to be the most qualified provider of these services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: A purchase order is hereby authorized to EMH&T for the 
necessary engineering design services for the Safe Routes to School 
Improvements; 

 SEC. 2: The Finance Director certifies that funds are available and is  
authorized to draw her warrants from time to time on the appropriate account of 
the city treasury in payment according to contract terms, not exceeding a total of 
$57,000; 

 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item # 9
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
April 16, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A Resolution requesting authorization to enter into an agreement with EMH&T 
for the Engineering Design Services for the Safe Routes to School (SRTS) 
Improvements. 

 
SUBMITTED BY 

Name & Title: Amy Havenar, P.E., City Engineer 
Department:  Engineering 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director Other:  

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

In May of 2012, the City was notified of our award of a Safe Routes to School 
(SRTS) grant for the construction of infrastructure projects around the Piqua 
Junior High School site, Washington Intermediate School site, and the Wilder 
Intermediate School site.  Some of the improvements will consist of the 
installation of new pavement markings and signage, the installation of ADA 
compliant curb ramps, the replacement of damaged sidewalk & curbs, and the 
construction of a multi-use path to the Junior High School from Looney Road, 
in addition to various other miscellaneous projects.  The proposed 
improvements for the Wilder Intermediate School site are also located along the 
designated walking routes for the new school which will be located at the 
former Piqua Memorial Hospital site.  Therefore, these improvements will be a 
benefit to both sites.    

As with all projects utilizing federal money, the selected consultants must be on 
ODOT’s prequalified consultants list.  After soliciting for Request for 
Qualifications (RFQ’s), EMH&T was selected to provide a Technical Proposal 
for the engineering design services.  This resolution would allow us to begin the 
design process.  

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $42,000  

Expenditure $:  $57,000 (includes 10% contingency) 

Source of Funds: $42,000 - SRTS Grant  
$15,000 - Fund 103 (Street Income Tax)   

Narrative  The grant application was submitted to cover 100% of the 
estimated costs associated with implementing the proposed 
improvements, which included both design and 
construction.  However, in reviewing a more detailed scope 
of work with both ODOT and EMH&T, the amount of 



design work required will exceed the amount that was 
originally estimated when applying for the grant.  Part of 
this is due to right-of-way work that will be required, but 
was not anticipated during the grant application process.  
The 103 Fund has the capacity to pay for the additional 
design fees not covered by the grant.  The total grant 
awarded for both design and construction of the 
infrastructure projects is $499,915.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution to enter into an agreement with EMH&T for the 
engineering design. 

2. Do not approve the resolution, therefore, do not complete the engineering 
design and return the funding.   

 
PROJECT TIMELINE 

 
The engineering design would begin immediately with project construction 
scheduled for the summer of 2015.   

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution to allow for engineering design to begin on the Safe 
Routes to School Improvement projects.   

ATTACHMENTS  Proposal for Engineering Services 

 









RESOLUTION NO. R-58-13 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FILE AN 
APPLICATION TO THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR THE 

FUNDING OF A FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR A SHARED SERVICE FACILITY  
 

 WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has encouraged all forms of local 
government to collaborate to investigate innovative practices; and 

 WHEREAS, the State of Ohio has offered the Local Government 
Innovation Fund; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Piqua, with the cooperation of other collaborative 
partners have developed a proposal to the Local Government Innovation Fund 
for the funding of a feasibility study for a shared service facility; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto 
concurring, that 

 SEC. 1: The City Manager is authorized to file an application to the 
Local Government Innovation Fund for funding for a feasibility study for a shared 
service facility. 

 SEC. 2: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and 
after the earliest period allowed by law. 
 
 
       _________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 

ATTEST:   _______________________ 
 REBECCA J. COOL   
 CLERK OF COMMISSION 

 



 

Item #10
 

Commission Agenda             
Staff Report 
 
 
 
 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
April 16, 2013 

 
REPORT TITLE 

(Should match resolution/ordinance 
title) 

 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO FILE AN APPLICATION TO 
THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT INNOVATION FUND FOR THE FUNDING OF A 

FEASIBILITY STUDY FOR A SHARED SERVICE FACILITY  
 

SUBMITTED BY 
Name & Title: William Lutz, Development Program Manager  
Department:  Development Department 

 
AGENDA CLASSIFICATION 

 

 
Consent 

 
Ordinance 

 
Resolution 

 
Regular 

 
APPROVALS/REVIEWS 

X City Manager Asst. City Manager/Finance 
 Asst. City Manager/Development Law Director 
Department Director  Other:   

BACKGROUND 
(Includes description, background, 

and justification) 
 

In 2012, the State of Ohio introduced the Local Government Innovation Fund.  
The fund was developed to provide loans and grants to local governments 
(including counties, townships, municipalities, school districts and other joint 
districts) to encourage collaborative efforts and pursue innovative practices. 

Internal discussions about the program were held and it was determined that the 
program would be an appropriate use of funds to request a grant for a feasibility 
study for a shared service facility.  The facility would be used to share fleet 
management and repair facility with other local government agencies which are, 
Piqua City School District, Ohio Department of Transportation – District VII, 
Miami East Local School District and the Covington Exempted Village School 
District. 

The funding would pay for the feasibility study to determine if cost savings can 
be had from all participants by having shared fleet management services. 

BUDGETING AND 
FINANCIAL IMPACT 

(Includes project costs and funding 
sources) 

Budgeted $:  $0 

Expenditure $:  $0 
Source of Funds: Local Government Innovation Fund  

Narrative  There is no cost to apply for the funds.  The request for this 
study is the maximum request, which is $100,000.   

 
OPTIONS 

(Include Deny /Approval Option) 
 

1. Approve the resolution and allow the City to apply for Local government 
Innovation Fund grant request. 

2. Do not approve the resolution and provide further direction. 
 

PROJECT TIMELINE 
 

The City should be made aware of whether the funding request was approved by 
June 30, 2013.  Upon successful funding, the study should be complete by 



December 31, 2013. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Approve the resolution to file the application.     

ATTACHMENTS  None. 

 



                                  RESOLUTION NO. R-59-13 
 

A RESOLUTION OBJECTING TO THE RENEWAL OF LIQUOR PERMIT #5520104      
HELD BY MARADI PETROLEUM LLC, DBA PIQUA MARATHON LLC, 1130 PARK 

AVENUE, PIQUA, OHIO 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 4303.271 of the Revised Code of Ohio authorizes the 
legislative authority of a municipal corporation to object to the renewal of liquor permits 
issued under Sections 4303.11 to 4303.183 of the Revised Code of Ohio, within the 
limits of such municipal corporation and request a hearing thereon; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Piqua Police Department has had significant contact 
with Buckeye Chuck’s at 1130 Park Ave. resulting in multiple court cases and a drain 
on City resources that affect the community as a whole; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the manager and an employee have been convicted of underage 
sales and the State of Ohio agencies have had multiple contacts with Buckeye Chuck’s 
due to illegal activity; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it appears from such investigation that the applicant, and/or 
partner, and/or member, and/or officer, and/or director, and/or manager, and/or 
shareholder, owning ten percent or more of the capital stock of the holder of Liquor 
Permit #5520104, has operated the liquor permit business in a manner that 
demonstrates a disregard for the laws, regulations or local ordinances of this state or 
any other state, and that the place for which the permit is sought is so located with 
respect to the neighborhood that substantial interference with public decency, sobriety, 
peace or good order would result from the renewal of the permit and operation 
thereunder by the applicant. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Commission of the City of 
Piqua, Miami County, Ohio, the majority of all members elected thereto concurring, 
that: 
 
SEC. 1: The City Commission of the City of Piqua objects to the renewal of 
Liquor Permit #5520104, held by Maradi Petroleum LLC DBA Piqua Marathon LLC, 
1130 Park Avenue, Piqua, Ohio, for all the statutory reasons provided in Section 
4303.292(A), specifically, (1) [t]hat the applicant, or any partner, member, officer, 
director, or manager of the applicant, or, if the applicant is a corporation or limited 
liability company, any shareholder owning five per cent or more of the applicant's 
capital stock in the corporation or any member owning five per cent or more of either 
the voting interests or membership interests in the limited liability company (a) has 
been convicted at any time of a crime that relates to fitness to operate a liquor 
establishment and (b) has operated liquor permit businesses in a manner that 
demonstrates a disregard for the laws, regulations, or local ordinances of this state or 
any other state, as well as for the reasons stated in the preamble, and that the said 
City Commission requests the Department of Liquor Control also reject the application 
for renewal for good cause. 
 
 SEC. 2: Two (2) certified copies of this resolution, together with a request 
that a hearing be held in the County of Miami, county in which said permit premises are 
located, must be sent to the Director of the Ohio Department of Liquor Control no later 
than May 2, 2013. 
 
 SEC. 3: This Resolution shall take effect and be in force from and after 
the earliest period allowed by law. 



 
 
       __________________________ 
       LUCINDA L. FESS, MAYOR 
 
 
PASSED:   _______________________ 
 
ATTEST:    _______________________ 
        REBECCA J. COOL 
                   CLERK OF COMMISSION 
 
 

STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER 
 
 The undersigned, Stacy M. Wall, Law Director for the City of Piqua, Ohio, 
hereby states that she has reviewed the reports of the Piqua Police Department and 
citations issued by the State of Ohio, respecting the advisability of renewing Liquor 
Permit #5520104, held by Maradi Petroleum LLC DBA Piqua Marathon LLC, 108-110 
North Main Street, Piqua, Ohio, and that the facts alleged in such reports, if true, 
constitute, in her opinion, substantial legal grounds, within the meaning and intent of 
division (A) Section 4303.292 of the Revised Code of Ohio, for denying the renewal of 
said permit. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________ 
       Stacy M. Wall 
       Law Director 




